






















































INTRADEPARTMENTAL CORRESPONDENCE 

June 10, 2021 
11.2 

TO: 	Commanding Officer, Audit Division 

FROM: 	Assistant to the Director, Office of Operations 

SUBJECT: 2020 30-DAY HOLD IMPOUND AUDIT RESPONSE 

Audit Division (AD) conducted a 30-Day Hold Impound Audit to determine compliance with 
Department directives, policies and procedures. The scope of the audit included whether the proper 
impounding authority was used, and to determine if the proper forms were utilized correctly. 
Of the 85 impounds reviewed by AD during July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, 14 impounds were 
completed by Office of Operations personnel; the remaining reports were completed by 
Traffic Group. Audit Division noted that the Department performed well overall, with 
improvements required over the following objectives tested: 

• Objective No. 1(a) — Proper Impound Authority Used Based on Circumstances of the 
Impound: Audit Division noted that nine out of 14 (64%) met the standard for this 
objective. Out of the five that did not meet the standard, four were due to the officers 
referencing an authority that is no longer utilized by the Department. The remaining report 
was improperly labeled as a "30-Day hold for Evidence" and should have been indicated as 
an "Evidence Hold." 

• Objective No. 1(b) — Impound Authority Used Required 30-Day Hold: Audit Division 
noted that five out of 14 (36%) met the standard for this objective. The nine reports that did 
not meet the standard, improperly labeled the impound as a "30-Day Hold." 

• Objective No. 2(c) — Officer's Signature and Approving Supervisor: Audit Division 
noted that 13 out of 14 (93%) met the standard for this objective. The report that did not 
meet Audit Division's standard did have a legible name of the supervisor approving the 
report; however, did not have a serial of the approving supervisor. 

• Objective No. 2(d) — Impound Notices Sent: Audit Division noted that nine out of 14 
(64%) met the standard for this objective. Three of the five reports that did not meet the 
standard did not indicate the impound notices were sent. The remaining two reports 
indicated notices were sent as required; however, failed to indicate the date the notices were 
sent. 
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The Office of Operations (00) Inspections Unit is in general agreement with the findings related to 
00 and will address the deficiencies as follows: 

• Recirculate Department Traffic Coordinator Transit Services Bureau Notice, 
30-Day Holds Under California Vehicle Code 23109.2, dated August 29, 2019, 
to Area commanding officers and Area training coordinators to disseminate the information 
during roll call; and, 

• Collaborate with Transit Services Bureau to provide training for Records personnel on 
proper impound authorities and procedures to allow an additional review. 

If you have any questions, please contact Police Performance Auditor IV Yadira Huerta, 
Office of Operations, at (213) 486-6960. 

T. SCOTT HARRELSON, Captain 
Assistant to the Director, Office of Operations 
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APPENDIX II 

Application Development and Support Division (ADSD) provided a data run of all 30-Day Hold 
Impounds for the period from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.  Auditors found that 30-Day 
Hold vehicle impounds are captured in the Stolen Vehicle System (SVS) by ADSD when  
“30-Day Hold” or a variation of the phrase1 is included in the ‘MIS’ field of the Vehicle 
Investigation Report screen.  Such an entry is made by Area records personnel when obtaining a 
Division of Records (DR) number for the impounded vehicle (See Figure No.1).2  If the ‘MIS’ 
field is left blank, the 30-Day Hold Impound will not be identified and captured by ADSD when 
a filter is performed.  The request of ADSD yielded 48 impounded vehicles.  See 
Recommendation No. 1. 
 
The California Department of Justice (DOJ) maintains the SVS which stores the following 
information: 
 

 Stolen vehicle  Felony vehicle 
 Stolen identifiable vehicle parts  Stored vehicle 
 Impounded vehicle (to be entered to 

SVS under “IMP” or “IMP Hold”) 
 Vehicles associated with missing 

persons 
 Repossessed vehicle  Lost vehicle 
 License plate lost or stolen  

 
Figure No. 1 – NECS Input Screen 

 

 
 
The list of 48 30-day Hold impounds provided by ADSD for a one-year time frame did not 
appear to be complete.  It seemed unlikely there were only 48 30-Day Hold impounds in one 
year.  To check if this was accurate, a query was performed to determine if there were additional 
30-day Hold impounds that were not identified by ADSD.  Auditors reviewed COMPSTAT3  
data for Citywide Traffic statistics which captures all CVC Section 23109 (Speed Contest) and 
CVC Section 23103 (Reckless Driving) violations.  Such violations require the vehicle to be 
                                                           
1 Variations of the phrase 30-Day Hold used include but not limited to: 30D HLD, 30DAY HLD, 30DAYHLD, 30 
DHOLD, 30DAYHOLD, etc. 
2 The Stolen Vehicle System (SVS) is a sub-system within the Network Communications System (NECS), which is 
maintained by DOJ. 
3 COMPSTAT, Department acronym for “computer statistics,” is a multi-faceted system for managing police 
operations.  It looks outwardly at crime and its effects in the community, while at the same time looking within the 
organization to identify best practices in managing police personnel and risk management issues. 
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impounded for 30 days.  This information is submitted to COMPSTAT by the Traffic Division 
Liaisons on a regular basis.  As these two CVC section violations require a 30-Day Hold on the 
vehicle, this was used to determine, at minimum, how many 30-Day Holds should have been 
completed for these two violations.  There was a total of 224 CVC section violations for the 
same approximate audit period whereby the involved vehicles were required to have been placed 
on a 30-Day Hold.   
 
A check with the Traffic Division Liaisons found that the numbers submitted to COMPSTAT 
were based solely on the violations themselves with no further information regarding the related 
impounds.  Additionally, geographic Areas and traffic divisions were contacted to determine a 
true population.  The checks determined the following: 
 

 Valley Traffic Division (VTD) maintained a log of all 30-Day Hold Impounds beginning 
September 2019; 

 Central Traffic Division (CTD) maintained an incomplete binder of Vehicle Reports for 
the period beginning November 2019; 

 South Traffic Division (STD) did not maintain any logs;  
 West Traffic Division (WTD) did not have any 30-Day Hold Impounds due to the Legal 

Notice dated June 26, 2017; and,  
 None of the Areas maintain any logs for 30-Day Hold Impounds.  

 
Based on the above information, there is currently no system in place that captures the number of 
30-Day Impounds completed. 
 
Because of this, auditors used all the identified 30-Day Hold impounds from the three sources 
that maintained records (ADSD data run, VTD log, CTD binder) which resulted in a population 
of 85.  Auditors elected to assess all 85 30-Day Hold impounds for this audit for a meaningful 
assessment.  See below table for the breakdown:   
 

Table No. A1 – Population Size and Source 
Source No. of Impounds 
ADSD 484 
VTD 25 
CTD 12 
Total 85 

 
The VTD log contained a total of 34 30-Day Hold impounds for the audit period with nine of the 
34 captured on ADSD’s list of 48 30-Day Hold impounds.  Central Traffic Division’s binder had 
12 30-Day Hold impounds that were not captured on ADSD’s list of 48 impounds.  However, 
ADSD’s list had six 30-Day Hold impounds from CTD that were not included in CTD’s binder.  
See Recommendation No. 2. 

                                                           
4 The list of 48 Vehicle Impounds included Valley Traffic Division (9), Central Traffic Division (15), South Traffic 
Division (9), West Traffic Division (1), 77th Street Division (1), Foothill Division (1), Harbor Division (1), 
Hollywood Division (3), Newton Division (2), North Hollywood Division (1), Olympic Division (2), Southeast 
Division (2), and West Los Angeles Division (1).  
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